
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY MARCH 4, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.   
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

1. Impact 7G – Doug Ongie, Environmental Planner; will be presenting a brief summary 
regarding Downtown East Redevelopment (former Croell Ready-mix site). 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 19, 2019. 
 
2. Motion to Approve a Liquor License Refund of $308.75 for Thirsty on 30 Inc. DBA Thirsty 

on 80 due to business closing effective February 7, 2019.  

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

3. Motion to Approve a Liquor License Renewal for Casey’s General Store #3463 – 615 S. 
Downey Street, West Branch, Iowa.  

4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Discussion Item: Proposed Ordinance to all bike riders 14 or over wear helmets.   
2. Second Reading, Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the 

City of West Branch by adding several amendments regarding front yard, back 
yard, and zero-lot line requirements.   

3. Public Hearing: Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended Budget for Fiscal 
Year Beginning July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020.  

4. Resolution 1788 – Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended Budget for 
Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020.  

5. Public Hearing: Considering Rezoning a Portion of the Meadows Subdivision, Part 
4, of Real Property from R-1 Residential District to R-2 lots 40-57.  

6. First Reading, Ordinance 764 – An Ordinance Rezoning a Portion of the Meadows 
Subdivision, Part Four, of Real Property From R-1 Residential District.  

7. Public Hearing: the Kuene/Kofron Property – Rezoning   
8. First Reading, Ordinance 765 – An Ordinance Rezoning the Kuene/Kofron Property 

from A-1 (Agricultural) to R-1 and Planned Unit Development District (PUD).  
9. Resolution 1785 – Approving Northside Addition Parcel D Site Plan (Brian Shay).  
10. Resolution 1786 – Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivision Final Plat.  
11. Resolution 1787 – Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivider’s Agreement  
12. Motion to Accept the Resignation of Wesley Homeister  
13. Motion to Approve Starting the Hiring Process for a West Branch Police Officer.  
14. Resolution 1789 – A Resolution Approving an Engineering Services Agreement Not-To-

Exceed $59,200.00 with Veenstra & Kimm Inc. for Services Related to the Relocation of 
Water Main and Force Main Lines Necessary for the I-80 Widening.  

15. Resolution 1790 – A Resolution Amending a Construction Engineering Service 
Agreement in the Amount Not-to-Exceed $34,000 with V&K for services related to 
added scope of work items on 2nd Street from College to Green Street. 

 
H. Reports 

 
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 

 
 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 
 
J. Adjournment 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not 

approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               February 19, 2019  
Council Chambers                                                                       7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch regular City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

Mayor Laughlin then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge 

of Allegiance.   Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jordan Ellyson, Jodee Stoolman and Nick Goodweiler 

were present. Brian Pierce was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City 

Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar,  

Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin and Police Chief Mike Horihan.  

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Blake Shultice, fourth grade teacher, Hoover Elementary, West Branch and his class presented a 

suggested ordinance that would require children under the age of fourteen (14) to wear helmets when 

riding bicycles and scooters.  They suggested that a reward (or incentive) in the form of a coupon for 

a free ice cream cone be given by West Branch Police Officers who found children obeying the new 

rule.  They also provided statistics from 2010 to 2015 on the number of deaths in the US and said that 

a number of states have adopted similar ordinances. 
 
The Council asked if skateboards would also be included in the ordinance and they responded that 

helmets would be require for anything with wheels. When asked who would pay for the cost of 

issuing ice cream tickets, the kids responded that the City could ask businesses for donations 

similar to Hoover’s Hometown Days.  The Council thanked the kids for the idea and said they 

would consider it and get back to Mr. Shultice. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comment.   
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting February 4, 2019. 

Motion to approve Brick Arch Winery’s Native Wine License Renewal – 116 W. Main Street, West Branch, Iowa. 

Motion to approve Board and Commission Appointments 

Motion to approve the Claims Report.   
 
FEBRUARY CLAIMS PAID AND JANUARY REVENUE 
 
EXPENDITURES     2/4/2019  
    
AERO RENTAL INC     EQUIPMENT RENTAL     869.52  
ALLIANT ENERGY     UTILITIES - WATER TOWER    10,155.12  
ALTORFER INC     VEHICLE REPAIR PARTS    21.36  
AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.    TASER SUPPLIES     1,056.00  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      1,534.01  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY   SUPPLIES      447.16  
BP AMOCO     VEHICLE FUEL     704.95  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER   RECORDING FEES     73.00  
CITY TRACTOR CO     EQUIPMENT     331.90  
CROELL,  INC.     SAND      398.90  
D&R PEST CONTROL     PEST CONTROL     70.00  
DODGE STREET TIRE & AUTO I   TIRES      706.92  
FARMERS SUPPLY SALES INC   REPAIR PARTS     160.57  
FEHR GRAHAM     308 PV PARK CONST SERVICE    674.50  
FRED'S FEED & SUPPLY LLC   REPAIR PARTS     22.04  
HD CLINE COMPANY     VEHICLE REPAIR PARTS    213.00  
IOWA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION   DUES SCHAFER 2019     195.00  
JETCO ELECTRIC INC.     SERVICE CALL     1,186.50  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.                 RECYCLING JAN 2019                 3,895.00  
JOURNEYED COM INC                   SOFTWARE                   48.01  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Discussion: Recreation Facility, Park & Sports Field Use and Fee Policy.   

Russell explained the proposed policy and fees for field rental at Cubby Park.  She said information was gathered 

from surrounding cities on pricing and that the Parks & Recreation commission discussed and agreed on the 

information provided to the Council.  Some Council members felt that non-residents should not be able to use the 

fields for practices, while others felt that anyone should be able to use the fields with West Branch residents getting 

first priority.  Russell said field scheduling has always been a challenge because most wait until the last minute to 

schedule practice time.  The Council recommended no changes to the policy presented. 

 

Russell said the commission was also discussing the sale of beer at the concession stand and said they were in favor 

of it but only during adult activities.  She said beer would not be sold during any children activities and asked the 

Council for their feedback. Russell also stated that only City employees would work the concession stand to ensure 

sales would be accurately accounted for.   The general consensus of the Council was to allow the sale of beer and 

not allow anyone to bring their own on to the property so consumption could be better controlled.    

 

Resolution 1784 – Approve a Fund Balance Reserve Policy and approve funding of $72,089 toward an eventual (3 

month of operations) fund balance goal of $459,072. / Move to action. 

Stoolman was absent from the last meeting when this policy was presented and questioned that she thought this 

policy was established for fiscal year 2019.  Jones said the while it was a goal for FY19, a policy was not formerly 

approved.  This policy would create the fund and make a first deposit (like a savings account).  He said the money 

in the fund would not be spent without the consent of the Council and be used generally for unplanned projects like 

the I-80 expansion project that will require the City to move water and sewer lines.   Miller said he was still voting 

‘no’ and stated that he had spoken to residents that didn’t feel the City was in a position to save money one year 

while having just raised taxes last year because of budget shortfalls.  Laughlin said he felt the policy was a good 

idea but felt that the fund only be used for natural disaster type emergencies, Stoolman agreed with the Mayor.  

While all members approved of the policy, no one felt comfortable funding it at this time.  

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1784.  AYES:  Goodweiler.  NAYS:  Stoolman, 

Ellyson, Miller.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion FAILED.   

 

Resolution 1781 – Accepting the Terms and Conditions of the Derelict Building Grant Program should the City of 

West Branch receive award of the grant. / Move to action. 

Laughlin said the resolution was a requirement of the derelict grant and if received, the City would need to provide 

a cash match. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1781.  AYES:  Stoolman, Ellyson, Miller, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion carried.   



 

 

First Reading, Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the City of West Branch by 

adding several amendments regarding front yard, back yard, and zero-lot line requirements. /Move to action. 

Brick explained that the new ordinance replaces Ordinance 747 previously approved in December 2017.  When 

ordinance 747 was passed, language was added to section 165.27 (R-1) district for zero-lot line properties.  It 

was later determined that zero-lots are not a permitted use in this district and therefore the language should be 

deleted entirely.  Ordinance 763 deletes the incorrect language, all other changes remain as is. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 763.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce. Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1782 – Amending the City of West Branch Housing Incentive Program. /Move to action. 

Laughlin said Brick previously provided details of the current housing incentive plan along with lost revenues 

to the general, water and sewer funds.  This information led the Council at last meeting to discuss changes to the 

current program.  The changes include increasing permit fees and reclaiming water and sewer connection fees.  

The five thousand ($5000) dollar tax rebate to homeowners remains unchanged however, the number of eligible 

homes in a calendar year decreased from fifty (50) to thirty (30).  Goodweiler questioned if limiting the number 

of homes really provided an incentive for new homeowners.  Brick explained that the limit set was to control 

the rebate on the back end for budgeting purposes.  With passage of this resolution, the revised program goes 

into effect on April 1, 2019 and the program will end June 30, 2021. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1782.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce. Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1783 – Accepting the City Administrator’s recommended budget and ordering a Notice of Hearing 

for March 4, 2019 to adopt the FY 2019-2020 Budget. /Move to action. 

Laughlin said last year he had requested a more streamlined approach to the budget process, however he 

commented he that this year’s process lacked department presentations on how funds would be expended.  

Stoolman stated that she would like to see each department budget for their own big expenses, much like the 

way the fire department does.  Miller agreed and said the fire department had always done a great job doing so.  

He also asked Stoolman to share her thoughts previously mentioned on a salary for the Fire Chief.  Stoolman 

replied that it is something the City should seriously consider at some point in the future. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1783.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, 

Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS:  None.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that IDOT has requested the City to complete the moving of water and sewer lines that affect the 

I-80 expansion project by the fall of 2019.  He also said a pre-construction meeting would be scheduled in the 

next couple of weeks with Taylor Construction for the College Street Bridge project.  Jones also asked the 

Council to review the Croell Site Re-Use plan is available and requires City feedback for final proofing.  Jones 

said the deadline for comments was February 26, 2019. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No report. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

No comments. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:44 p.m.  

       

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                            Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Liquor License Refund of $308.75 for Thirsty on 

30 Inc. DBA Thirsty on 80 due to business closing effective February 7, 

2019.   

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Approve a liquor license refund for Thirsty on 30 Inc. DBA Thirsty on 80.  The business 

unexpectedly closed on February 7, 2019.  License is effective until 8/18/2019. 

 

The amount of refund owed from the City is $308.75. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a License Renewal for Casey’s General Store #3463 

– 615 S. Downey Street, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, Class C Carryout 

Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Casey’s Marketing Company, dba Casey’s General 

Store #3463 at 615 S. Downey Street.  Renewal effective March 31, 2019 through March 30, 

2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  February 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding the Proposed Ordinance that all bike riders 

14 or over wear bike helmets. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police  

DATE:  February 26, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The Hoover 4th graders proposed the following ordinance: All bike and scooter riders in West 

Branch aged 14 or younger must wear a helmet. 

 

Incentive: Police officers who notice young riders wearing helmets can give them a "safety 

coupon” that earns them a free ice cream cone or other small reward. (The word ticket may send 

the wrong message.) 

 

The West Branch Police Department wants to promote safety in the schools and our roadways. 

The WBPD will evaluate any ideas, laws or concepts that would promote public safety. The laws 

must be fair, impartial, and easily enforced.   It is a proven fact that wearing bike helmets will 

promote safety and help limit life threatening injuries suffered in a vehicle crash or even just 

falling off a bicycle.  There are a few thoughts that come to mind.  If it is mandatory to wear bike 

helmets for children aged 14 or older why shouldn’t be a law for younger children to wear a 

helmet. Why should it not be mandatory for an adult or child under 14 not to wear a helmet?  

Why not adults?  It might be hard for an officer to tell the difference between a child under 14 

and a child that is 14 years old. Would it be effective to write a child a traffic ticket that requires 

a fine to be paid?  Maybe the child does not have a helmet, or can't afford a helmet and is from 

out of town and not aware of the ordinance. If you require bike helmet for bicycles why not 

motorcycles?  

 

If the city wants to add something to the ordinance, I would suggest something along the lines 

of the City of West Branch would like to promote safety and would recommend that people of 

all ages wear a bike helmet. (no fine) 

 

I like the idea of the City of West Branch promoting bike helmets.  I like the ice cream coupon 

idea. That ice cream coupon can be given to young people who wear a bike helmet.  I have been 

talking with Main Street Sweets.   Main Street Sweets has agreed, with the help of WBPD to 

help promote bike safety. We would do this by promoting the use of bike helmets'.  Below are 

the guide lines for the program. 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

1. The program would run from April 1, 2019 to November 1, 2019. 

2. The WBPD would purchase 200 coupons (to start)   from Main Street Sweets for .50 apiece. 

3. The child could get a coupon if they wear their bike helmet and obey the rules of the road. 

4. The child could get a coupon once every week or two. 

5. Officers will find a safe way and safe location to give the coupon. (not traffic stop)  

 

It has been suggested at the West Branch Directors meeting, that the City of West Branch could 

sponsor a bike rodeo. This could be done at the same time as the Grand Opening of Cubby Park. 

We would provide bike helmets, have bike helmet fitting, do bike inspections, teach hand signals 

and have a bike rodeo. The bike rodeo would teach bike safety, and teach safe operation of the 

bike.  Prizes, helmets, ribbons, and other free giveaways may be given.   We could have gift 

drawings that would help promote attendance.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction from the City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 763 – An Ordinance Amending the Zoning 

Code of the City of West Branch by adding several amendments regarding 

front yard, back yard, and zero-lot line requirements. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 8, 2019  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission approved Ordinance 747 in 2017 adding language to 

Chapter 165.27(R-1) and 165.28(R-2) for zero-lot line requirements.  As an oversight, language 

was added to section 165.27 (R-1) which does not allow for zero-lots. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission met on February 5, 2019 and reviewed Ordinance 747 and 

approved removing all updates that allow zero-lots in the R-1 district.   

Ordinance 763 corrects this error, a copy of Ordinance 747 is attached indicating the corrections 

necessary. 

 

It is now necessary to approve Ordinance 763 that corrects the former Ordinance 747. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Second Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 747 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City’s Zoning 

Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on said zoning revisions has now been held as required 

by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 165.11(2) of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

subsection (E) which reads as follows: 

 

”E. In all residential districts there shall be a minimum front yard required for that 

particular zoning district in this Chapter; provided, however, that where lots 

compromising thirty (30) percent or more of the frontage within two hundred (200) feet 

of either side lot line are developed with buildings at a greater or lesser setback than 

stated in said particular zoning district, the front yard requirement for an undeveloped 

lot shall be the average of these building setbacks.  In computing the average setback, 

buildings located on reverse corner lots or entirely on the rear half of lots shall not be 

counted.  However, in no case shall the required front yard setback exceed fifty (50) 

feet.   

 

2. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot lines shall have a lot area of three thousand eight hundred and fifty (3850) 

square feet per dwelling unit.  Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a building line frontage of 

thirty-five (35) feet. 

  

3. Amendment.  Section 165.27(3)(C) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

4. Amendment.  Section 165.28(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding subparagraph (3) 

which reads as follows: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a frontage of not less than thirty-five (35) feet and a 

lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) square feet.” 

Ordinance being amended 



 

 

 

5. Amendment.  Sections 165.29(3)(B) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence at the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) 

square feet with a minimum width at the established building line of thirty-five (35) 

feet.” 

 

6. Amendment.  Section 165.29(3)(G) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

7. Amendment.  Section 165.35(2)(C) is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety and 

replacing it with the following: 

 
“C. Rear Yard.    No rear yard shall be required in the Central Business CB-1 District.  

When abutting a residential district, a twenty (20) rear yard is required.” 

 

7. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

8. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

9. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  November 6, 2017  

Second reading: November 20, 2017 

Third Reading: December 4, 2017 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 763 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH BY ADDING SEVERAL AMENDMENTS REGARDING FRONT YARD, 

BACK YARD, AND ZERO-LOT LINE REQUIREMENTS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

has heretofore recommended it necessary to make certain amendments to the City’s Zoning 

Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing on said zoning revisions was previously held as required 

by law. 

 

 WHEREAS, this Ordinance replaces Ordinance 747, passed and approved December 

4, 2017; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Section 165.11(2) of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

subsection (E) which reads as follows: 

 

”E. In all residential districts there shall be a minimum front yard required for that 

particular zoning district in this Chapter; provided, however, that where lots 

compromising thirty (30) percent or more of the frontage within two hundred (200) feet 

of either side lot line are developed with buildings at a greater or lesser setback than 

stated in said particular zoning district, the front yard requirement for an undeveloped 

lot shall be the average of these building setbacks.  In computing the average setback, 

buildings located on reverse corner lots or entirely on the rear half of lots shall not be 

counted.  However, in no case shall the required front yard setback exceed fifty (50) 

feet.   

 

2. Amendment.  Section 165.28(3)(A) is hereby amended by adding subparagraph (3) 

which reads as follows: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a frontage of not less than thirty-five (35) feet and a 

lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) square feet.” 

 

3. Amendment.  Sections 165.29(3)(B) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence at the end of said section: 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have a lot area of four thousand two hundred (4200) 

square feet with a minimum width at the established building line of thirty-five (35) 

feet.” 

 

4. Amendment.  Section 165.29(3)(G) is hereby amended by adding the following 

sentence to the end of said section:  

Ordinance being proposed 



 

 

 

“Zero-lot line dwellings shall have two side yard setbacks, one which is zero (0) feet 

and the other shall be a minimum of eight (8) feet.” 

 

5. Amendment.  Section 165.35(2)(C) is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety and 

replacing it with the following: 

 
“C. Rear Yard.    No rear yard shall be required in the Central Business CB-1 District.  

When abutting a residential district, a twenty (20) rear yard is required.” 

 

6. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

7. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  February 19, 2019  

Second reading: March 4, 2019 

Third Reading:  
 

 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended 

Budget for Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 28, 2019  
     

 BACKGROUND:  

 

As provided by law our budget process has met the requirements of law. Notice of Public Hearing 

- Budget Estimate: (Form 631) Publication requirements: "not less than 10 days nor more than 

20 days BEFORE the DATE of the hearing". The day on which the hearing is held IS NOT used 

in the 10 and 20 calculation. Please allow appropriate time to comply with the code. If the 

publication does not meet this statutory requirement, the notice and hearing MUST be re-done, 

NO EXCEPTIONS. The budget is not compliant with IA Code section 384.16 unless this process 

is completed.   

 

Note that one copy of a Proof of Publication/Affidavit of Posting MUST be sent to and verified 

by the county auditor. By statute, an auditor CANNOT levy property taxes until this proof has 

been provided. Iowa Code 24.10. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open and Close the Public Hearing – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1788 – Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended 

Budget for Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

DATE:  February 11, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As provided by law our budget process has met the requirements of State law. The final fiscal 

year 2019 -2020 annual budget set forth in the budget summary and certification of taxes and in 

the detailed budget in support thereof showing revenue estimates and appropriation and 

allocation of programs for said fiscal year are presented for adoption. Once approved the “City 

Administrator’s Recommend Budget” will be become the “2019 – 2020 Annual Budget”. 

 

A budget booklet geared for public consumption will developed and displayed in the lobby of 

City Hall and on the City Web Site.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 1786 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1788 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

WHEREAS, the budget for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 

2020, has been prepared; and  

 

WHEREAS, this City Council has published notice, held a public hearing on the 

budget estimate, and has otherwise complied with statutory requirement for the approval of the 

budget; and  

 

NOW BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, as 

follows:   

 

The budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020, is hereby 

approved by the City Council this 4th day of March, 2019.  

 

The City Clerk is hereby directed to forward the budget report and one proof of publication to 

the Cedar County Auditor by March 15, 2019, in accordance with the budget instructions 

therein.   

 

*     *     *     *     * 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: Considering Rezoning a Portion of the Meadows 

Subdivision, Part 4, of Real Property from R-1 Residential District to R-

2 lots 40-57. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 8, 2019  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 

A public hearing on the matter of rezoning a portion of The Meadows, Part 4 (lots 40-57) from 

R-1 to R-2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch Planning and Zoning Commission in the Council Chambers at the City Office, 

located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, February 26, 

2019.  The public hearing will discuss a proposed rezoning request of the following 

described parcel from R-1 to R-2:   

 
A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE 

NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW 

¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR 

COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 44 OF THE GREENVIEW ESTATES 

SUBDIVISION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE S1º19’13”E, 

195.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE 86º46’30”E, 315.69 FEET; THENCE S3º13’30”E, 

24.96 FEET; THENCE 143.10 FEET ALONG A 216.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD 

BEARING S21º52’40”E, 141.10 FEET);  

THENCE S40º56’32”E, 967.89 FEET; THENCE S49º03’24”W, 50.37 FEET; THENCE 89.97 FEET ALONG A 

300.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING S57º38’54”W, 89.63 FEET); 

THENCE N40º56’32”W, 961.68 FEET; THENCE S88º40’13”W, 77.11 FEET; THENCE S01º19’47”E, 127.44 

FEET; THENCE N82º46’48”W, 37.29 FEET;  

THENCE S88º40’47”W, 140.28 FEET; THENCE N01º19’13”W, 351.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

 

 YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City 

Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, in the Council Chambers at the City 

Office, located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, 

March 4, 2019.  The public hearing will discuss a proposed rezoning request of the 

following described parcel:    

 
A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE 

NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW 

¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR 

COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 44 OF THE GREENVIEW ESTATES 

SUBDIVISION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE S1º19’13”E, 

195.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE 86º46’30”E, 315.69 FEET; THENCE S3º13’30”E, 

24.96 FEET; THENCE 143.10 FEET ALONG A 216.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD 

BEARING S21º52’40”E, 141.10 FEET);  

THENCE S40º56’32”E, 967.89 FEET; THENCE S49º03’24”W, 50.37 FEET; THENCE 89.97 FEET ALONG A 

300.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING S57º38’54”W, 89.63 FEET); 



 

 

THENCE N40º56’32”W, 961.68 FEET; THENCE S88º40’13”W, 77.11 FEET; THENCE S01º19’47”E, 127.44 

FEET; THENCE N82º46’48”W, 37.29 FEET;  

THENCE S88º40’47”W, 140.28 FEET; THENCE N01º19’13”W, 351.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

 

 

 

 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding same 

may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 764 – An Ordinance Rezoning a Portion of 

the Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, of Real Property from R-1 

Residential District to R-2 lots 40-57. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
First reading of Ordinance 764, rezoning a portion of The Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 to R-2, lots 

40-57. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve First Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 764 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS 

SUBDIVISION, PART FOUR, OF REAL PROPERTY FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT TO R-2 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”) has petitioned the City of West Branch 

for a zoning district amendment for properties located in the Meadows Subdivisions, said 

parcel being legally described as:   

 

 A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF 

PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW1/4) OF 

THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER 

(SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF 

WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 44 OF THE GREENVIEW 

ESTATES SUBDIVISION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 

THENCE S1º19’13”E, 195.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE 

86º46’30”E, 315.69 FEET; THENCE S3º13’30”E, 24.96 FEET; THENCE 143.10 FEET 

ALONG A 216.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD BEARING 

S21º52’40”E, 141.10 FEET);  

THENCE S40º56’32”E, 967.89 FEET; THENCE S49º03’24”W, 50.37 FEET; THENCE 89.97 

FEET ALONG A 300.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING 

S57º38’54”W, 89.63 FEET); THENCE N40º56’32”W, 961.68 FEET; THENCE S88º40’13”W, 

77.11 FEET; THENCE S01º19’47”E, 127.44 FEET; THENCE N82º46’48”W, 37.29 FEET;  

THENCE S88º40’47”W, 140.28 FEET; THENCE N01º19’13”W, 351.60 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING.(the “Parcel). 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an R-2 

Residential District, in place of an R-1 Residential District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the 

City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa : 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a R-2 Residential District in place of R-1 Residential District. 

  



 

 

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication 

as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a 

whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

 Read First Time: March 4, 2019 

 Read Second Time: March 18, 2019  

 Read Third Time: April 1, 2019 

 

 

 

                                  

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: Considering Rezoning Property known as the Kuene / 

Kofron Property (located behind the BP gas station) from A-1 to a Planned 

United Development (PUD).  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 7 

A public hearing on the matter of rezoning of the Kuene/ Kofron property (located behind the 

BP gas station) from A-1 to a Planned Unit Development (PUD). 

 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch Planning and Zoning Commission in the Council Chambers at the City Office, 

located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, February 26, 

2019.  The public hearing will discuss a proposed rezoning request of the following 

described parcel:   

 

REZONING DESCRIPTION "AG" TO "PUD" 

 

A PORTION OF LOT D OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 

79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WEST BRANCH, 

CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

  

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West, of the 

Fifth Principal Meridian, West Branch. Cedar County, Iowa; Thence S00°52'40"E, along the 

West Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8, a distance of 1637.40 feet; Thence 

N89°24'33"E, 60.52 feet, to a Point on the East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E" of Interstate 

No. 80, and the POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence continuing N89°24'33"E, 232.95 feet, to the 

Southwest Corner of Cookson Subdivision, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 

1211 at Pages 333-334 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence 

N89°22'29"E, along the South Line of said Cookson Subdivision, 650.25 feet, to the Southeast 

Corner thereof, and the Southwest Corner of Stoolman's 1st Addition, in accordance with the 

Plat thereof Recorded in Book 140 at Page 129 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's 

Office; Thence N89°25'17"E, along the South Line of said Stoolman's 1st Addition, and the 

Easterly projection thereof 803.44 feet, to the Northwest Corner of Lot A of Lot D, in accordance 

with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 3 at Page 265 of the Records of the Cedar County 

Recorder's Office; Thence S01°02'25"E, along the West Line of said Lot A of Lot D, a distance 

of 885.86 feet, to its intersection with the North Right-of-Way Line of said Interstate No. 80; 

Thence S85°19'36"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line, 3.75 feet, to a Point 150.00 feet 

normally distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 72+13; Thence 

S89°35'43"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line 313.16 feet, to a Point 160.00 feet normally 

distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 69+00; Thence N68°48'05"W, along 

said Northerly Right-of-Way Line, 1294.32 feet, to the Southeast Corner of the Tract of Land 

conveyed by Warranty Deed, as Recorded in Book 668 at Pages 88-89 of the Records of the 

Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence N00°23'24"W, along the East Line of said conveyed 

Tract, 334.42 feet; Thence S89°24'33"W, along a line parallel with and 40.00 feet normally 

distant Southerly from the North Line of said Conveyed Tract, 169.05 feet, to a Point on the 

West Line of said Conveyed Tract and the said East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E"; Thence 

N10°07'24"W, along said West Line and East Right-of-Way Line, 40.56 feet, to the Point of 

Beginning. Said tract of land contains 23.28 Acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions 

of record.  



 

 

 

  

 

YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City Council 

of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, in the Council Chambers at the City Office, 

located at 110 N. Poplar Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, March 4, 

2019.  The public hearing will discuss a proposed rezoning request of the following 

described parcel:    

 

REZONING DESCRIPTION "AG" TO "PUD" 

 

A PORTION OF LOT D OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 

79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WEST BRANCH, 

CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

  

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West, of the 

Fifth Principal Meridian, West Branch. Cedar County, Iowa; Thence S00°52'40"E, along the 

West Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8, a distance of 1637.40 feet; Thence 

N89°24'33"E, 60.52 feet, to a Point on the East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E" of Interstate 

No. 80, and the POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence continuing N89°24'33"E, 232.95 feet, to the 

Southwest Corner of Cookson Subdivision, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 

1211 at Pages 333-334 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence 

N89°22'29"E, along the South Line of said Cookson Subdivision, 650.25 feet, to the Southeast 

Corner thereof, and the Southwest Corner of Stoolman's 1st Addition, in accordance with the 

Plat thereof Recorded in Book 140 at Page 129 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's 

Office; Thence N89°25'17"E, along the South Line of said Stoolman's 1st Addition, and the 

Easterly projection thereof 803.44 feet, to the Northwest Corner of Lot A of Lot D, in accordance 

with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 3 at Page 265 of the Records of the Cedar County 

Recorder's Office; Thence S01°02'25"E, along the West Line of said Lot A of Lot D, a distance 

of 885.86 feet, to its intersection with the North Right-of-Way Line of said Interstate No. 80; 

Thence S85°19'36"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line, 3.75 feet, to a Point 150.00 feet 

normally distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 72+13; Thence 

S89°35'43"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line 313.16 feet, to a Point 160.00 feet normally 

distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 69+00; Thence N68°48'05"W, along 

said Northerly Right-of-Way Line, 1294.32 feet, to the Southeast Corner of the Tract of Land 

conveyed by Warranty Deed, as Recorded in Book 668 at Pages 88-89 of the Records of the 

Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence N00°23'24"W, along the East Line of said conveyed 

Tract, 334.42 feet; Thence S89°24'33"W, along a line parallel with and 40.00 feet normally 

distant Southerly from the North Line of said Conveyed Tract, 169.05 feet, to a Point on the 

West Line of said Conveyed Tract and the said East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E"; Thence 

N10°07'24"W, along said West Line and East Right-of-Way Line, 40.56 feet, to the Point of 

Beginning. Said tract of land contains 23.28 Acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions 

of record. 

 



 

 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding same 

may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 765 – An Ordinance Rezoning Property 

known as the Kuene / Kofron Property (located behind the BP gas station) 

from A-1 to a Planned United Development (PUD). 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
First reading of Ordinance 765, rezoning the Kofron property, (behind the BP gas station) from 

A-1 to a Planned Unit Development for the purpose of creating a commercial business and 

residential neighborhood. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve First Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 765 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN 23.28 ACRE PARCEL OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 80 AND 

EAST OF PARKSIDE DRIVE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 AND 

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner of the property described below has petitioned the City of 

West Branch for a zoning district amendment for property located north of and adjacent to 

Interstate 80 and east of Parkside Drive, said parcel being legally described as:   

 

 A PORTION OF LOT D OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, 

TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

  

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West, of the 

Fifth Principal Meridian, West Branch. Cedar County, Iowa; Thence S00°52'40"E, along the 

West Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8, a distance of 1637.40 feet; Thence 

N89°24'33"E, 60.52 feet, to a Point on the East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E" of Interstate 

No. 80, and the POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence continuing N89°24'33"E, 232.95 feet, to the 

Southwest Corner of Cookson Subdivision, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 

1211 at Pages 333-334 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence 

N89°22'29"E, along the South Line of said Cookson Subdivision, 650.25 feet, to the Southeast 

Corner thereof, and the Southwest Corner of Stoolman's 1st Addition, in accordance with the 

Plat thereof Recorded in Book 140 at Page 129 of the Records of the Cedar County Recorder's 

Office; Thence N89°25'17"E, along the South Line of said Stoolman's 1st Addition, and the 

Easterly projection thereof 803.44 feet, to the Northwest Corner of Lot A of Lot D, in accordance 

with the Plat thereof Recorded in Book 3 at Page 265 of the Records of the Cedar County 

Recorder's Office; Thence S01°02'25"E, along the West Line of said Lot A of Lot D, a distance 

of 885.86 feet, to its intersection with the North Right-of-Way Line of said Interstate No. 80; 

Thence S85°19'36"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line, 3.75 feet, to a Point 150.00 feet 

normally distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 72+13; Thence 

S89°35'43"W, along said North Right-of-Way Line 313.16 feet, to a Point 160.00 feet normally 

distant Northerly from Interstate No. 80 centerline station 69+00; Thence N68°48'05"W, along 

said Northerly Right-of-Way Line, 1294.32 feet, to the Southeast Corner of the Tract of Land 

conveyed by Warranty Deed, as Recorded in Book 668 at Pages 88-89 of the Records of the 

Cedar County Recorder's Office; Thence N00°23'24"W, along the East Line of said conveyed 

Tract, 334.42 feet; Thence S89°24'33"W, along a line parallel with and 40.00 feet normally 

distant Southerly from the North Line of said Conveyed Tract, 169.05 feet, to a Point on the 

West Line of said Conveyed Tract and the said East Right-of-Way Line of Ramp "E"; Thence 

N10°07'24"W, along said West Line and East Right-of-Way Line, 40.56 feet, to the Point of 

Beginning. Said tract of land contains 23.28 Acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions 

of record. 

(the “Parcel”); and  

 

 



 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in a 

PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of an AG Agriculture District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the 

City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa : 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of AG 

Agriculture District. 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication 

as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a 

whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

 Read First Time: March 4, 2019 

 Read Second Time: March 18, 2019 

 Read Third Time: April 1, 2019 

 

 

 

               

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1785 – Approve Northside First Addition Condos Site Plan 

(Brian Shay) 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This item was reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved with the follow 

conditions:  

1. Provide sidewalk connection from the North Parking Spaces to the Buildings B and C. 

2. At the request of the abutting landowners, mutually agreeable fencing will be provided 

rather than vegetative screening. 

3. Seek guidance and develop with state law and previous local agreements to establish law 

enforcement of Fire lanes on private street(s) of this project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Service and Enforcement Agreement 

 

West Branch Police Department 

Cedar County 

State of Iowa 

  

And 

 

Brian Shay of Northside First Addition Condos 

1905 Stone Valley Drive 

North Liberty, IA 5231 

 

In accordance with Iowa State Statue this agreement establishes a general authorization to the 

West Branch Police Department in enforcing fire lane and handicap accessibility parking laws 

on the private property known as Northside First Addition Condos. 

 

In all cases of rented, leased, owned residential or commercial property are subject to abide by 

the fire lane and handicap accessibility parking laws.  Areas establishing a fire lane(s) shall 

prohibit parking at any time.  These areas shall be identified per public standards.  In 

accordance with this agreement; Northside First Addition Condos will also be responsible to up 

keep, install and repair (if necessary) all appropriate fire lane signage within the private 

property (on the premise / the proposed development). 

 

 

 

 

________________________________, ___________________________, _______________ 

Chief of Police    City     Date 

 

 

 

________________________________, ___________________________, _______________ 

Developer     Address    Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1785 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING NORTHSIDE FIRST ADDITION CONDOS  

SITE PLAN 
 

 

WHEREAS, Brian Shay, has heretofore submitted a proposed Site Plan to construct 

multiple family townhomes on North Downey Street, West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (See Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff, 

including the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed 

the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of the 

City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the Project be 

and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

  

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1786 – A Resolution Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivision 

Final Plat. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course is proposing to develop a portion of the golf 

course to add 25 residential lots. This parcel has been rezoned from A-1 to R-1 (16 lots) and R-

2 (9 lots). Lot 26 and Outlot A will remain A-1, with Lot 26 sold to Erin Morrison –Vincent to 

construct a wedding event center. In addition, the Preliminary Plat was approved and 

recommended for approval by City Council on October 16, 2018. The Final Plat has been 

reviewed by the City Engineer and Approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1786 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF CEDARS EDGE, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the developer did file with the City Clerk of West Branch, a final plat for Cedars 

Edge, West Branch, Iowa; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the legal description for said Subdivision is as follows: 
 

See Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

; and  
 
 WHEREAS, said property has been dedicated with the free consent and in accordance with the 

desires of the owner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned plat and subdivision is found to conform with Chapter 354 of 

the State Code of Iowa, Chapter 170 of the West Branch Code of Ordinances, and all other ordinances 

and statutory requirements; and 
  
 WHEREAS, said final platting of the aforementioned subdivision has been examined by the 

West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission; and  
 
 WHEREAS, recommendations from both said Commission and City Staff have been made; 

and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due deliberation, said Commission has recommended that the final platting 

of the proposed subdivision, be accepted and approved. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the final platting of Cedars Edge, West Branch, Iowa, be and the same is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby authorized and directed to certify a copy of this Resolution to the County Recorder of Cedar 

County, Iowa, along with all other required ancillary documents. 

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1786 - EXHIBIT A 

Cedar’s Edge Final Plat 

City of West Branch 

 

Being a part of the South half (S ½) of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Section 6, Township 

79 North, Range 4 West of the 5th P.M, City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa described as: 

Beginning at the Southwest Corner of the South half (S ½) of said Northwest Quarter (NW ¼), 

thence N86°43’04”E, 439.73 feet to the West line of Lot 9 of Greenview Estates, an official 

plat in the City of West Branch, thence along said West line N03°24’34”W, 40.96 feet to the 

Northwest Corner of said Lot 9; thence along the North line of said Lot 9 N86°42’34”E, 193.71 

feet to the Southwest Corner of Auditor’s Parcel B as recorded in Book F Page 12 of the Cedar 

County Recorder’s Office, thence along the West line of said Parcel B N03°17’26”W, 80.02 

feet to the Northwest Corner of said Parcel B, thence along the North line of said Parcel B 

N70°02’37”E, 348.25 feet to the Northeast Corner of said Parcel B, thence N01°02’20”W, 

1098.53 feet; thence S87°13’55”W, 958.00 feet to the West line of said South half; thence 

S01°02’20”E, 1328.24 feet to the Point of Beginning.       

Described parcel contains 27.63 acres and is subject to easements and other restrictions of 

record.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1787 – A Resolution Approving Cedar’s Edge Subdivider’s 

Agreement. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course is proposing to develop a portion of the golf 

course to add 25 residential lots. This agreement sets out the terms and conditions of which this 

development is planned to be completed.  Lot 26 and Outlot A will remain A-1, with Lot 26 sold 

to Erin Morrison –Vincent to construct a wedding event center.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

 SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT 

 

 CEDARS EDGE SUBDIVISION  

 

 

 This Agreement is made by and between Cedars Edge Properties, LLC, an Iowa limited 

liability company, hereinafter referred to as the "Subdivider", and the City of West Branch, Iowa, a 

Municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "City". 

 

 

SECTION 1.  MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS; CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF 

MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
 In consideration of the City approving the Final Plat and subdivision of real estate known 

and designated as Cedars Edge, a Subdivision of the City of West Branch, Iowa, prior to 

Subdivider's installation and construction of the required municipal improvements, Subdivider shall 

make escrow provisions as provided herein.  Municipal improvements shall include three (3) 29-

foot PCC streets known as Lazy Brook Drive, Ember Lane and Birdie Drive, sanitary sewers, water 

mains, storm sewers, sump-pump line, storm water detention basin, mail box clusters and street 

lighting.  Said municipal improvements shall be constructed and installed in accordance with 

construction plans and specifications approved by the City Engineer of the City who shall have the 

right to make or authorize occasional inspections of the work in progress.  Said inspections shall 

not relieve or release the Subdivider from the responsibility to construct the municipal 

improvements in accordance with the approved plans and specifications.  Notwithstanding anything 

to the contrary herein, Subdivider shall not be required to construct Birdie Drive until such time as 

the Cedar Johnson Road adjacent to the Subdivision is improved by the City.  

 

 

SECTION 2.  SIDEWALKS. 
 
 The Subdivider agrees that no later than five (5) years from the date of the City’s Resolution 

approving the Final Plat of Cedars Edge Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, or upon seventy-five 

percent (75%) of the development of the lots therein, whichever occurs first, to install sidewalks 

abutting each residential lot which shall be at least five (5) feet wide and constructed according to 

the plans and specifications as approved by the City Engineer. The escrow provision need not 

include the sidewalk installation, however, the same shall remain a lien against each lot until 

accepted and released by the City.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the 

Subdivider’s obligation to install sidewalks on Lots 11-20 adjacent to Cedar Johnson Road shall not 

commence until such time as Cedar Johnson Road is improved by the City.  In the event dwellings 

have been constructed on Lots 11-20 at the time Cedar Johnson Road improvements are completed, 

the sidewalks on Lots 11-20 adjacent to Cedar Johnson Road shall be constructed within one (1) 

year of the Cedar Johnson Road Improvements.  Lot 16 shall have sidewalks constructed abutting 

Cedar Johnson Road and Ember Lane.  Lots 18-19 shall have sidewalks constructed abutting Cedar 

Johnson Road and Lazy Brook Drive.  Lot 17 shall have sidewalks constructed abutting Cedar 

Johnson Road, Lazy Brook Drive and Ember Lane.  Lot 20 shall have sidewalks constructed 

abutting Cedar Johnson Road, Birdie Drive and Lazy Brook Drive.       

 



 

 

SECTION 3.  ESCROW MONIES 
 
 The Subdivider shall deposit with the City Clerk in escrow an amount equal to the estimated 

cost of constructing the municipal improvements plus 10% thereof as determined by the City 

Engineer and said deposit shall be referred to as "Municipal Improvements Escrow". The escrow 

deposit shall be in the form of cash, bank check that will be cashed, bond or irrevocable letter of 

credit, all as approved by the City Attorney.   

 

 

SECTION 4.  USE OF ESCROW MONIES 
 
 Except with regard to construction of Birdie Drive, if after one year from the date of the 

City’s resolution approving the Final Plat of the Subdivision, the municipal improvements have not 

been constructed and installed for the Subdivision, then City may use and/or make demand upon 

the municipal improvements escrow to construct and install said municipal improvements.  The 

City shall release any bond or letter of credit or refund to the Subdivider any portions of or any 

excess escrow monies not used by the City after construction, installation and acceptance of all of 

the municipal improvements.  Any cash or check held in escrow shall be released as needed for 

payment of the costs of the improvements. 
 
 With regard to construction of Birdie Drive, if after one year from the date of the City’s 

improvement of Cedar Johnson Road, Birdie Drive has not been constructed and installed for the 

Subdivision, then City may use and/or make demand upon the municipal improvements escrow to 

construct and install said municipal improvement.  The City shall release any bond or letter of credit 

or refund to the Subdivider any portions of or any excess escrow monies not used by the City after 

construction, installation and acceptance of Birdie Drive.  Any cash or check held in escrow shall 

be released as needed for payment of the costs of the improvements. 
 
 In addition, the City may make use of any of the proceeds of the security provided by 

Subdivider in order to enforce the erosion control requirements pursuant to Section 170.15(15) of 

the West Branch Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

SECTION 5.  WAIVER 
 
 Except with regard to construction of Birdie Drive and construction of a building on Lot 26, 

in the event the Subdivider shall sell or convey or make application for a building permit on any lot 

or lots in the subdivision without having first constructed and installed all the municipal 

improvements for the Subdivision, then the City shall have the right to proceed therewith as 

provided in Section 4 above. 

  

 

SECTION 6.  LIEN 
 
 The costs of the construction and installation of the municipal improvements shall be a lien 

and charged against all lots in said Subdivision and need not meet the requirements of notice, benefit 

or value as provided for by the Code of Iowa for assessing said municipal improvements which may 

exceed the municipal improvements escrow. 

 



 

 

SECTION 7.  RELEASE 
 
 The City agrees that when all municipal improvements have been constructed and installed 

for the Subdivision, except for construction of Birdie Drive, to the satisfaction of the City and upon 

acceptance by resolution, to furnish the Subdivider a good and sufficient Release for filing in the 

office of the County Recorder so that this Agreement will not constitute a cloud upon the title of the 

Lots of the subdivision and the City shall release the escrow.  City shall retain sufficient amount of 

Subdivider’s escrow to ensure construction of Birdie Drive and at such time as construction of 

Birdie Drive is completed to the satisfaction of the City, City shall release said escrow.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, upon Subdivider making the required 

escrow under Paragraph 1 herein, and the City approving the Final Plat for the Subdivision, the City 

shall release Lot 26 of the Subdivision from any lien created by this Agreement and Subdivider 

shall be permitted to convey and transfer Lot 26.  However, the Subdivider expressly agrees that no 

occupancy permit for any building constructed on Lot 26 shall be given by the City until the 

municipal improvements have been constructed.  

 

 

SECTION 8.  PUBLIC SERVICES. 
 
 Subdivider agrees that public services including, street maintenance, snow plowing, water 

and sanitary sewer service, will not be provided in the Subdivision until the municipal 

improvements have been constructed, installed and accepted by the City. 

  

 

SECTION 9.  PAYMENT OF SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION FEE. 
 
 Prior to the approval of the Final Plat of Cedars Edge Subdivision, the Subdivider shall pay 

to the City the sum of $250.00 for each of Lots 11-26 as payment of the Sanitary Sewer Connection 

Fee District. 

 

 

SECTION 10.  STORM WATER EROSION CONTROL AND TOPSOIL REQUIREMENTS. 
 
 Subdivider or its assigns or successors in interest shall be responsible for the maintenance 

of appropriate erosion control measures during construction of the infrastructure and during 

building of any structures in the Subdivision.  In addition, the Subdivider shall be responsible for 

the placement of 4-inches of topsoil or allowed substitute upon each lot after the structures have 

been constructed prior to the issuance of any occupancy permit for said structure. 

 

 

SECTION 11.  ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
 
 This agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their assigns or successors in interest and 

it is understood that the City, at its option, may contract for the construction and installation of the 

municipal improvements as provided above. 

 

 

 



 

 

SECTION 12. ACCESS 
 
 Lots 11 and 16 -20 shall not be permitted to access to and from Cedar Johnson Road for 

purposes on ingress and egress. Lots 12-15 shall be permitted access to and from Cedar Johnson 

Road for purposes of ingress and egress. 

 

 

SECTION 13. OUTLOT A 
  
 Developer shall be permitted to resubdivide Outlot A in order to develop residential lots.  

 

 

Dated this ___ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

[Signatures and acknowledgments follow on next page] 

 

 

Cedars Edge Properties, LLC:  City of West Branch: 
 

 

By:_________________________  ____________________________ 

   Jerry D. Sexton, Manager/Member  Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

By:_________________________  ____________________________ 

     Tammy J. Sexton, Manager/Member Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF CEDAR, ss: 

 

 On this            day of                                          , 2019, before me, the undersigned, a 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Roger Laughlin and Redmond 

Jones II, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor 

and City Administrator/Clerk, respectively, of the City of West Branch, Iowa; a municipal 

corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of the 

corporation, and that the instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of the corporation, by 

authority of its City Council, as passed by Resolution of the City Council; and Roger Laughlin 

and Redmond Jones II acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be their voluntary act and 

deed and the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it voluntarily executed. 

      

       ______________________________ 

        Notary Public  

 



 

 

        

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF ______________, ss: 
 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _________, 2019, by Jerry 

D. Sexton as Member/Manager of Cedars Edge Properties, LLC. 

  

       ______________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF ______________, ss: 
 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _________, 2019, by 

Tammy J. Sexton as Member/Manager of Cedars Edge Properties, LLC. 

  

       ______________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1787 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SUBDIVIDER’S AGREEMENT FOR CEDARS EDGE, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of the approval of the Final Plat of Cedars Edge, West Branch, Iowa, 

Cedars Edge Properties, LLC (the “Subdivider”) is required to install certain municipal improvements; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, to that end, the City Attorney, with the assistance of the City Engineer, have 

negotiated a Subdivider’s Agreement that outlines the responsibilities of the Subdivider as it pertains to 

construction of said municipal improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Subdivider’s Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the aforementioned Subdivider’s Agreement be and the same is hereby approved. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 

execute this Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk should file a copy of this Subdivider’s 

Agreement in the office of the Cedar County Recorder. 

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Accept the Resignation of Wesley Homeister and payment 

plan to reimburse the City of West Branch the cost of $4,345.97 in 

accordance with his work agreement with the city. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police  

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

See resignation letter and response. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 

 

 

Wesley Homeister 
573 N 4th St, West Branch, IA 52358 – 319-830-2551 44denver.viking@gmail.com 

 

 

February 25, 2019 

 

Redmond Jones II 

City Administrator  

City of West Branch 

101 N Poplar St.  

West Branch, IA 52358 

 

Dear Mr. Jones 

 

I would like to notify you that I am resigning from my position of Patrolman for the West 

Branch Police Department effective March 11. 

 

Thank you very much for the opportunity the City of West Branch has given my to learn and 

grow in law enforcement. I have enjoyed my time with the City of West Branch, and I believe 

the experiences have taught me a great amount about law enforcement and the profession. 

 

In March I will be taking a new position with the Polk County Sheriff’s Office. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Wesley Homeister 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

Wesley Homeister 

573 N 4th St,  

West Branch, IA 52358 

denver.viking@gmail.com 

 

Dear Wesley, 

 

Your resignation from your position of police officer with the City of West Branch has been 

accepted pending City Council approval March 4th, 2019.  Notwithstanding, any unexpected 

positions from City Council the following terms are expected to be amenable.  Your 

resignation is expected to be effective on March 11th 2019 as requested. 

 

I have no doubt you will continue to perform to your usual high standard during your 

remaining time with the City of West Branch.  I have conferred with the Finance Director and 

the City Attorney based on your signed work agreement you owe the City $12,345.97; 

however, upon your request we reviewed Fair Labor Standard guidelines and have agreed to 

amend this amount to $4,345.97.  This is based on the 2-3 years of service category and the 

start date of April 22, 2016 (completion ILEA training) as recorded with the city. 

 

The agreement calls for repayment at a minimum rate of $300 per month plus interest.  This 

would require full repayment in 16 months.  It is important that any reason for slow or missing 

payment be immediately conferred with my office to avoid any complications with your ILEA 

state certification. 

 

It has been a pleasure working with you, and I wish you all the best in the future.  If I can be a 

resource for you in the future, please do not hesitate to ask. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Redmond Jones II 

City Administrator 

City of West Branch 

 

 

Cc: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Starting the Hiring Process for a West Branch Police 

Officer.   

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Officer Homeister' last day will be 3-11-2019  

 

1. The WB City councils will most likely accept Officer Homeister' resignation. 

2. The WBPD will try to promote internally (reserves, part-time). 

3. If we don't promote someone from inside the police department we will post the     

    Position (within two weeks). 

4. WBPD would advertise for a full- time officer position.   The application process will be 

    kept open for three weeks.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 13 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1789 – A Resolution Approving an Engineering Services 

Agreement Not-To-Exceed $59,200.00 with Veenstra & Kimm Inc. for 

Services Related to the Relocation of Water Main and Force Main Lines 

Necessary for the I-80 Widening. . 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Dave Schechinger, City Engineer 

DATE:  February 27, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 14 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
UTILITY RELOCATION FOR INTERSTATE 80 WIDENING 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of __________,2019, 
by and between the City of West Branch, a Municipal Corporation, 110 North Poplar 
Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, IA 52358, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY,” 
and Veenstra & Kimm, Inc., an Iowa Corporation, 860 22nd Avenue, Suite 4, 
Coralville, IA 52241, hereinafter referred to as the “CONSULTANT.”  
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY has received notice from the Iowa Department of 
Transportation that certain water and sewer utility lines crossing Interstate 80 are in 
conflict with the future box culvert to be installed in the vicinity of the abandoned 
railroad corridor, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY is now contemplating entering into a utility agreement 
with Iowa Department of Transportation to relocate said utilities, hereinafter referred to 
as the Project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, accordingly, the CITY has agreed to engage the CONSULTANT 
as an independent contractor to assist in the design and construction of the Project for 
a total consulting fee not to exceed Fifty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($58,000) under the 
terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY AND THE CONSULTANT, FOR 
CONSIDERATION HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS 
FOLLOWS:  
  
 I. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  
 
 The CONSULTANT shall perform in a timely and satisfactory manner 
engineering services in connection with the Project as same are set forth in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  
 
 II. TIME OF COMPLETION.  
 
 The CONSULTANT shall complete the services to be rendered hereunder in  
accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated 
by this reference. The CONSULTANT does hereby expressly acknowledge and agree 
that TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE of this Agreement, and, thus, any failure by the 
CONSULTANT to timely render and perform services hereunder shall constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  
 



 

 

 

III. GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS.  
 
 A. The CONSULTANT shall not commit any of the following employment 
practices in connection with or while rendering engineering services hereunder and 
does hereby expressly agree to prohibit the following practices from being committed 
by any subcontractors engaged by the CONSULTANT in connection with the Project. 
Upon request, the CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with a copy of the relevant 
provisions of any agreement entered into by the CONSULTANT and subcontractor in 
connection with the Project to confirm to the satisfaction of the CITY that the 
requirements under this Subparagraph III(A) have been met.  
 

 1. To discharge or refuse to hire any individual because of their race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, age, marital status, or sexual 
orientation. 
  
 2. To discriminate against any individual in terms, conditions or 
privileges of employment because of their race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, disability, age, marital status or sexual orientation.  
 

 B. The CITY may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, upon no less 
than seven (7) calendar days’ written notice. In the event that the CITY does so 
terminate this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for all work and services 
performed up to the time of said termination upon submission to the CITY of a final 
billing statement and review and approval thereof by the West Branch City Council at 
the next regularly scheduled Council Meeting; provided, however, that any such sum 
shall not be greater than the total amount to be paid for services rendered hereunder 
as set forth in Article IV below; and further provided that, in the event the CITY 
terminates this Agreement with cause, the CITY may, in its sole discretion, elect to 
withhold payment of an amount sufficient to engage a third party to properly complete 
the Project in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  
 
 C. This Agreement shall not be assigned or in any manner transferred by the 
CONSULTANT, without the express written consent of the West Branch City Council.  
 
 D. It is hereby acknowledged and agreed by both parties hereto that the 
engagement of the CONSULTANT by the CITY in connection with the Project shall be 
as an independent contractor and shall be exclusive; provided, however, that the 
Contractor may retain the services of subcontractors for the purpose of performing its 
obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement so long as the CONSULTANT 
has first obtained the written approval of same from the CITY; and further provided 
that, should the CONSULTANT so engage subcontractors under the terms of this 
Subparagraph III(D), the CONSULTANT shall solely responsible for compensating 
any such subcontractors.  
 

1 

2 



 

 

 

 E. The CITY shall make all criteria, design and construction standards, and 
information regarding the CITY’s requirements for the Project available to the 
CONSULTANT upon reasonable request by the CONSULTANT therefor. The CITY 
shall furnish reasonable assistance to the CONSULTANT in the use of said 
information and documentation at the request of the CONSULTANT.  
 
 F. It is further agreed that neither party to this Agreement shall perform contrary 
to any federal or state law, rule or regulation, or the West Branch City Code of 
Ordinances.  
 
 G. At the request of the CITY, the CONSULTANT shall attend such meetings of 
the City Council relating to the PROJECT hereunder.  
 
 H. The CONSULTANT agrees to furnish all reports, specifications, and 
drawings with the seal of a professional engineer affixed thereto or such other seal as 
required by State law.  
 
 I. Upon termination of this Agreement and request of the CITY, the 
CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with copies of all basic notes and sketches, 
charts, computations, and any other data prepared or obtained by the CONSULTANT 
pursuant to this Agreement without cost, and without restrictions or limitations as to 
the use thereof in connection with the PROJECT. It is understood, however, that the 
CONSULTANT shall not be liable for the CITY’s use of such documents on other 
projects.  
 
 J. Original drawings prepared by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement 
shall become the property of the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall be allowed to keep 
mylar reproducible copies for the CONSULTANT’s own filing use.  
 
 K. Fees paid in order to secure approval of authorities having jurisdiction over 
the Project shall be paid by the CITY.  
 
 L. If the CONSULTANT is providing Construction Administration or Supervision 
under this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall make visits to the Project construction 
site at intervals appropriate to the various states of construction and as mutually 
agreed to by the CONSULTANT and CITY in order to observe as an experienced and 
qualified engineering professional the progress and quality of the various aspects of 
the work being performed by contractors and/or subcontractors. Based on information 
obtained during such visits and on such observations, the CONSULTANT shall 
endeavor to determine to the best of the CONSULTANT’s ability if work on the Project 
is proceeding in accordance with the concept plan for the Project and shall keep the 
CITY informed of the progress of the work on the Project and any concerns the 
CONSULTANT may have regarding same.  
 
 

3 



 

 

 M. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from 
claims under workers’ compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily 
injury, including personal injury, sickness, disease or death of any and all employees 
or of any person other than such employees and from claims or damages because of 
injury to or destruction of property, including loss of use resulting therefrom. The 
CONSULTANT shall name the CITY as an additional insured party on 
CONSULTANT’s general liability insurance policy. At the request of the CITY, the 
CONSULTANT shall give the CITY a certificate of insurance evidencing that the 
insurance required under this Agreement is in force, and the CONSULTANT shall 
immediately notify the CITY of any revocation or cancellation of any of the above-
referenced insurance policies. The CONSULTANT shall take all necessary steps to 
preserve the CITY’s defenses of governmental immunity under Chapter 670 of the 
Code of Iowa, including, without limitation, requiring that the language set forth in 
Exhibit “D” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference be included in the 
certificate of insurance to be provided to the CITY hereunder.  
 
IV. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES.  
  
 The CITY shall compensate the CONSULTANT for engineering services 
rendered under this Agreement for a total fee not to exceed Fifty-Eight Thousand 
Dollars ($58,000). Said total fees shall be paid by the CITY to the CONSULTANT in 
accordance with the payment schedule set forth in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and 
incorporated by this reference; provided, however, in express acknowledgment that 
this Agreement is a COMPLETION DATE CONTRACT, the CONSULTANT does 
hereby acknowledge and confirm the CONSULTANT’s understanding that TIME IS 
OF THE ESSENCE and that the timely completion of each phase of the Project as set 
forth in Exhibit “A” and the timely completion of the Project in its entirety constitutes 
material terms of this Agreement without which the CITY would not have engaged the 
CONSULTANT. Accordingly, the CONSULTANT also acknowledges that:  
 
 A. No payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT hereunder if the Project is 
not proceeding on schedule unless otherwise hereafter agreed in writing by the CITY.  
 
 B. Under no circumstances shall the CITY compensate the CONSULTANT for 
work that has not yet been completed. For purposes of this provision, work shall 
constitute the discrete phases of the Project as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
Accordingly, the CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to compensation hereunder for 
any phases of the work until the entire phase of work has been completed.  

4 



 

 

 

C. In any event, no payment hereunder shall become due and payable until 
submission to the CITY by the CONSULTANT of a billing statement therefor and 
review and approval of the billing statement by the West Branch City Council at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting.  
 
 V. INDEMNIFICATION.  
 
 The CONSULTANT agrees to fully indemnify, defend, save and hold the CITY, 
its officers, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors and employees, 
harmless from any and all liability to third parties (including reimbursement of 
reasonable legal fees and costs) arising directly or indirectly from the negligent act, 
error or omission of the CONSULTANT, its officers, representatives, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or employees in connection with the Project.  
 
 VI. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  
 
 The CONSULTANT hereby warrants and represents that the CONSULTANT (i) 
has not created nor contributed to the creation or existence (ii) nor will it create or 
contribute to the creation or existence of any type of hazardous or toxic wastes, 
materials, chemical compounds, or substances, or any other type of environmental 
hazard or pollution, whether latent or patent, at the premises of the Project, or in 
connection with or related to the Project. The CONSULTANT, notwithstanding the limit 
of liability contained in Provision V of this Agreement, does hereby fully indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless the CITY, its officers, employees and agents from 
and against any and all debts, claims, causes of action, administrative orders and 
notices, costs (including but not limited to, response and/or remedial costs), personal 
injuries, losses, damages, liabilities, demands, interest, fines, penalties and expenses, 
including reasonable legal fees and expenses, consultants’ fees and expenses, court 
costs and all other out-of-pocket expenses, suffered or incurred by the CITY, its 
officers, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors, employees and 
grantees as a result of any breach of this Provision VI.  
 
 VII. INTERPRETATION.  
 
 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the generally accepted 
standards of the Engineering Profession; provided, however, that it is expressly 
understood and agreed by both parties that to the extent, if at all, the explicit terms 
and conditions of this Agreement are in conflict with said generally accepted standards 
of the Engineering Profession, said explicit terms and conditions of this Agreement 
shall control in the event of a dispute between the parties hereto.  

5 



 

 

  

 VIII. SURVIVAL.  
 
 All express representations, indemnifications or limitations of liability made in or 
given in this Agreement shall survive the completion of the engineering services to be 
rendered by the CONSULTANT hereunder or the termination of this Agreement for 
any reason.  
 
 IX. CONTROLLING LAW.  
 
 This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. The parties 
hereto agree that any action, suit or proceeding based upon any matter, claim or 
controversy arising under this Agreement shall be brought solely in the state courts 
located in Cedar County, Iowa or the federal courts located in Linn County, Iowa. The 
parties hereto hereby irrevocably waive objection to the venue of the above-mentioned 
courts, including any claim that such action, suit or proceeding has been brought in an 
inconvenient forum. Both parties hereto expressly acknowledge and agree that 
nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require the parties to submit 
to mandatory arbitration or mediation in the event of a breach or dispute hereunder.  
 
 X. HEADINGS.  
 
 The headings of sections of this Agreement are for convenient reference only 
and shall not be deemed to limit, construe, affect, modify or alter the meaning of such 
sections.  
 
 XI. SEVERABILITY.  
 
 If any section, subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the application 
thereof to the CONSULTANT, the CITY or a particular circumstance shall, to any 
extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of said section, subsection, term or 
provision of this Agreement or the application of same to the CONSULTANT, the 
CITY or particular circumstances other than for which it was held invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each remaining section, subsection, 
term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law.  
 
 XII. AUTHORITY.  
 
 The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they have the 
authority to sign as, or on behalf of, the party for whom they are signing.  

6 



 

 

 

 XIII. FINAL AGREEMENT.  
 
 Both the CONSULTANT and the CITY hereby expressly acknowledge and 
agree that this Agreement is intended to set forth the entire agreement between the 
parties regarding the engineering services to be rendered by the CONSULTANT to 
the CITY in connection with the PROJECT, that there are no other considerations or 
monies contingent upon or resulting from the execution of this Agreement, and that no 
other monies or considerations have been solicited. No waiver, change, modification 
or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding upon either party hereto unless in 
writing and signed by both the CONSULTANT and the CITY. The waiver by either 
party hereto of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be 
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that provision or of any other 
provision or condition in this Agreement.  
 
 
ACCEPTED & AGREED:  
 
VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.   CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA  
 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
An Authorized Representative   Roger Laughlin, Mayor  
ATTEST:      ATTEST:  
 
 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
An Authorized Representative   City Clerk  

7 



 

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

UTILITY RELOCATION FOR INTERSTATE 80 WIDENING 
WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES:  
 
The CONSULTANT shall perform in a timely and satisfactory manner engineering 
services in connection with the PROJECT as set forth as follows:  

1. Gather and review available information regarding the location, depth, 
size and material for the existing utilities.  

2. Topographic and existing utility surveying of the project area.  
3. Review and coordination of IDOT proposed bridge removal and culvert 

installation plans with utility relocation.  
4. Review of geotechnical information gathered by IDOT for placement of 

fill and potential settlement in project vicinity.  
5. Preliminary design and coordination meetings with the City and IDOT.  
6. Prepare preliminary estimate of cost.  
 
7. Final construction plans and specifications  
8. Bidding assistance. City shall reimburse Consultant for cost of 

distributing plans and specifications to bidders.  
9. General construction contract services.  

8 



 

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

UTILITY RELOCATION FOR INTERSTATE 80 WIDENING 
WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 
TIME OF COMPLETION:  
 
The CONSULTANT shall complete the services to be rendered hereunder in  
accordance with the schedule set forth below. The CONSULTANT does hereby 
expressly acknowledge and agree that TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE of this 
Agreement, and, thus, any failure by the CONSULTANT to timely render and perform 
services hereunder shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. The schedule 
milestones for this project are as follows:  

1. Topographic surveying of the project area shall be completed by May 31, 
2019  

2. Draft plans and specifications for City review shall be delivered by July 
26, 2019.  

3. Final construction plans and specifications shall be delivered by August 
16, 2019.  

4. Estimated bid date for project is September 5, 2019.  
5. Construction of improvements shall be completed by  
 June 1, 2020.  

 
The CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for delays in approval, securing 
easements, or other actions by governmental agencies which may delay the time of 
completion for services.  

9 



 

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

UTILITY RELOCATION FOR INTERSTATE 80 WIDENING 
WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES:  
 
The CITY shall compensate the CONSULTANT for engineering services rendered 
under this Agreement based on the following:  

 
1. For DESIGN SERVICES, the fee for design services, design 

conferences, topographic survey, preparation of plans and specifications 
for the project shall be the lump sum fee of Thirty-Four Thousand Eight 
Hundred Dollars ($34,800);  

 
2. For GENERAL SERVICES, the total fee for general services during 

construction and final review of the project shall be the lump sum fee of 
Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($8,800);  

 
3. For ONSITE CONSTRUCTION REVIEW, The total fee for construction 

review for the Project shall be based on the standard hourly fees for the 
time the Engineers’ personnel are actually engaged in the performance 
of the work, plus direct out-of-pocket costs incurred by personnel who 
are actually engaged in the work. The total fee for resident review 
services shall not exceed the sum of Fourteen Thousand Four Hundred 
Dollars ($14,400) based on providing 200 hours of construction review 
services at $72/hour;  

 
4. For EASEMENTS, a preparation fee of $1,000 per easement for 2 

easements for an estimated total easement preparation fee of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000);  

 
Said total fees shall be paid by the CITY to the CONSULTANT and shall become due 
and payable upon submission to the CITY by the CONSULTANT of a billing statement 
therefor and review and approval thereof by the West Branch City Council at the next 
regularly scheduled Council Meeting.  

10 



 

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

UTILITY RELOCATION FOR INTERSTATE 80 WIDENING 
WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 
 
 “The Companies affording coverage and the Additional Insured, City of West 
Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, expressly agree and state that the purchase of this 
policy of insurance by the insured and the listings of the City of West Branch as an 
Additional Insured hereunder do not waive any of the defenses of governmental 
immunity available to the Additional Insured under Iowa Code Section 670.4 as it now 
exists and as it may be amended from time to time.  
 
 The Companies and Additional Insured further agree that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental 
immunity under Iowa Code Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended 
from time to time.  
 
 The Additional Insured shall be responsible for asserting any defense of 
governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and shall do so upon the timely 
written request of the Companies.  

 
The Companies shall not deny coverage under this policy and the Companies 

shall not deny any of the rights and benefits accruing to the Insured or the Additional 
Insured under this policy for reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a 
court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental 
immunity asserted by the Additional Insured.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1789 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT NOT-

TO-EXCEED $59,200.00 WITH VEENSTRA & KIMM INC. FOR SERVICES 

RELATED TO THE RELOCATION OF WATER MAIN AND FORCE MAIN LINES 

NECESSARY FOR THE I-80 WIDENING. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) is preparing plans for 

widening Interstate 80 that will include removal of the interstate bridges over the abandoned 

railroad right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a box culvert will be placed along the abandoned railroad right-of-way to 

provide a below grade crossing of Interstate 80; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Installation of the box culvert will be in a location that is currently occupied 

by City utilities including a 10” sanitary sewer force main, a 16” sanitary sewer force main, and 

a 12” potable water line; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the utilities will need to be relocated to avoid conflict with the box culvert 

and placed inside a steel casing pipe from right-of-way to right-of-way of the interstate; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa DOT has indicated they would like to enter into a utility agreement 

to have the City of West Branch relocate the utilities by November 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa DOT would reimburse the City for cost associated with the relocation 

currently estimated at $452,300 which includes a $59,200 estimate for engineering services 

associated with design and construction phase engineering services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to move forward with this agreement in order to provide 

Iowa DOT the information they need to finalize the utility agreement with the city 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa that the aforementioned agreement with Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. be and the same is hereby 

approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Administrator are directed to execute said agreement on 

behalf of the City.   

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

  __________________________________ 

  Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1790 – A Resolution Amending a Construction Engineering 

Service Agreement in the Amount Not-To-Exceed $34,600 with Veenstra 

& Kimm Inc. for Services Related to Added Scope of Work Items on 2nd 

Street from College to Green Street. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Dave Schechinger, City Engineer 

DATE:  February 28, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The selected scope of work for College Street Bridge reconstruction includes the “added items” 

scope of work that was included as an alternate bid item.  This work includes utility and street 

reconstruction on 2nd Street from College Street to Green Street.  The engineering design fees 

for this work were included in the non-participating scope of work to prepare the plans and 

specifications for the work to obtain the bids.  The engineering services agreement for non-

participating did not include the construction engineering for the added items, as it was not 

certain if the work would be constructed due to budgetary concerns.   

 

With the added items included in the construction contract, the construction engineering is 

necessary.  Upon approval by Council, the engineering services agreement will be amended to 

include the additional fees for construction services related to the added items. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 15 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agreement being amended 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1790 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING A ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT IN THE 

AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $34,600 WITH VEENSTRA & KIMM INC. FOR SERVICES 

RELATED TO ADDED SCOPE OF WORK ITEMS ON 2ND STREET FROM COLLEGE TO 

GREEN STREET. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa desires to construct improvements that 

leverage grant funding in conjunction with the College Street Bridge Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa desires to construct improvements on 2nd 

Street between College and Green Streets; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to obtain 

professional engineering services for the design of the needed improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Veenstra and Kimm, Inc. is qualified and capable of supplying said 

engineering services and currently serve as the construction engineer representing the City of 

West Branch on related and adjacent projects; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the selected scope of work for College Street Bridge reconstruction 

includes the “added items” scope of work that was included as an alternate bid item; and   

 

 WHEREAS, this work includes utility and street reconstruction on 2nd Street from 

College Street to Green Street, and the engineering design fees for this work were included in 

the non-participating scope of work which has been budgeted for in preparing the plans and 

specifications for the project. The engineering services agreement for non-participating did not 

include the $34,600 construction engineering expenses for the added items, as it was not certain 

if the work would be constructed due to budgetary concerns.   

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to move forward with this agreement 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreement with Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. be and the same 

is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Administrator are directed to execute said 

agreement on behalf of the City.   
 

Passed and approved this 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

  __________________________________ 

  Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 


